IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ERIC GRIFFIN, : Petitioner, : vs. : STATE OF FLORIDA, : Respondent. : :

Case No. SC07-168

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

INITIAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON THE MERITS

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

BRAD PERMAR Assistant Public Defender FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 0473014

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33831 (863) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

ISSUE II

THE	SECOND DISTR	RICT COMMITTED	REVERSIBLE	ERROR
	BY DRASTICA	LLY LIMITING T	HE SCOPE OF	
	MOTIONS TO	CORRECT UNDER	RULE 3.800(1	B)(2)17

ISSUE III

J	THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE INITIAL
	MOTION TO CORRECT SENTENCE, REGARDING THE
	MISLEADING JURY INSTRUCTION ERRONEOUSLY
	INDICATING THE TRIAL JUDGE HAD DISCRETION
	IN SENTENCING, WHERE THE STATE PROCEEDED
	UNDER THE PRR ACT, AND WHERE THE ERROR
	NULLIFIED A RIGHT RESERVED TO "THE
	SOVEREIGN PEOPLE"

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Federal Cases

Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466, 120 S.Ct. 2348 (2000)39, 40 Blakely v. Washington, 542 U.S. 296, 124 S.Ct. 2531 (2004) passim United States v. Booker, 125 S.Ct. 738 (2005) 48

State Cases

24, 25 Akers v. State, 890 So. 2d 1257 (Fla. 5th DCA 2005) Armstrong v. Harris, 773 So. 2d 7 (Fla. 2000) 35 Battle v. State, 911 So.2d 85 (Fla. 2005) 17, 26 Desue v. State, 908 So. 2d 1116 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005)18, 22, 23, 25 Gray v. State, 910 So. 2d 867 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) 18, 22, 23 Griffin v. State, --- So.2d ----16 Griffin v. State, 946 So.2d 610 (Fla. 2d 2007) Johnson v. State, 308 So. 2d 38 (Fla. 1974) passim 12, 31 Jones v. State, 813 So. 2d 22 (Fla. 2002) 48 Knight v. State, 653 So. 2d 457 (Fla. 5th DCA 1995) 38 Murray v. Regier, 872 So.2d 217 (Fla. 2002) 17 Peterson v. State, 911 So. 2d 184 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) 18, 22 Ridgeway v. State, 892 So.2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) 2, 15 17, 26 Savoie v. State, 422 So.2d 308 (Fla.1982) Simmons v. State, 36 So. 2d 207 (Fla. 1948) passim

State Statutes Florida Statutes 794.011

1

18

Florida Rules Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.800(b)(2)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On September 24, 2003, the Hillsborough County State Attorney charged the Petitioner, Eric Griffin, with sexual battery using a deadly weapon and burglary with battery, in violation of <u>Florida Statutes 794.011</u> and 810.02. (R18-22) The incident leading to the charges occurred on or about November 2, 2002. (R18-19)

The Honorable Wayne Timmerman, Circuit Judge, conducted the jury trial beginning November 17, 2004. (T1)¹ The jury acquitted Mr. Griffin of Count Two, and returned a lesserincluded verdict of sexual battery with the threat of force. (R65)

On November 18, 2004, Judge Timmerman sentenced Mr. Griffin to 30 years prison as a prison releasee reoffender. (R69-77)

Mr. Griffin filed a timely notice of appeal on November 19, 2004. (R84) On June 29, 2005, appellate counsel filed an initial motion to correct sentencing error, and November 17, 2005, filed a second or amended motion to correct. (R93-153,213-40) In both cases, more than 60 days after such filing the lower-court clerk certified that no order or ruling

 $^{^1 \, {\}rm In}$ the brief that follows, references to the record proper will be made through the use of the letter "R," followed by the appropriate page number. ("R1," etc.) References to the transcript of trial will be made through the use of the letter "T," followed by the appropriate page number. ("T1," etc.)

was timely filed. (R212,272)

In his initial brief and as noted below, the Petitioner presented four arguments, on matters including the assessment of certain court costs, and on the arguable use of hearsay to prove the Petitioner's status as a prison releasee reoffender (PRR), and on the use of an arguably-misleading jury instruction, indicating that the trial judge had discretion in sentencing, when under the PRR act he had no discretion whatsoever.

On January 5, 2007, the Second District Court of Appeal issued an opinion in the foregoing case, <u>Griffin v. State, 946</u> <u>So.2d 610 (Fla. 2d 2007)</u>, in which the court certified conflict with <u>Ridgeway v. State, 892 So.2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA</u> <u>2005)</u>, over the matter of a court cost amounting to some \$65.00.

The Petitioner filed a notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction on January 31, 2007. In due course and/or on July 12, 2007, this Honorable Court accepted jurisdiction, dispensed with oral argument and directed the Petitioner's initial brief be filed on or before August 6, 2007. That brief follows.

At trial, Assistant Public Defenders Everette George and Maria Pavlidis represented Mr. Griffin, while Assistant State Attorney Ursula Richardson represented the prosecution. (T1)

The state charged that on November 2, 2002, Mr. Griffin

met Leslie Schoolcraft about 2:30 or 3:00 in the morning, on a roadside near Ybor City where she was looking for a house key she'd accidentally thrown out of her car. (T68-69) The prosecutor said the evidence would show Mr. Griffin offered to buy her breakfast but needed to stop at his apartment to get The prosecutor said the evidence would show money. (T69-70) after Ms. Schoolcraft went to the apartment with him, Mr. Griffin "attack[ed] her physically" and raped her, then came back from the kitchen, after which "Mr. Griffin put bleach on his fingers and then stuck his finger inside her vaginal area." (T70-72) The prosecutor said the evidence would show Mr. Griffin then told Ms. Schoolcraft they had to clean up the apartment, and that thereafter she was able to get away and notify police. (T72-78)

The defense responded that Mr. Griffin had consensual sex with Ms. Schoolcraft, during which she made sure he used a condom. (T78-79) As to the "burglary," the defense said evidence would show the apartment belonged to a long-time acquaintance, Judyette Dudley, to whom Mr. Griffin regularly sold or exchanged drugs, and thus that he had permission to be in the apartment. (T79-80)

Officer Steven Letteri began the state's case by testifying that he responded to the scene, during which he described Ms. Schoolcraft as upset, her clothes disheveled and with marks and bruises; her face was red, she had some marks

on her chest and "some scrapes and abrasions on her arms and stuff." (T81-82) Letteri described his investigation and identified certain exhibits, then described the arrival of the owner of the apartment, Ms. Dudley, who was "upset that someone had been in her apartment." (T82-85) He described going into the apartment with Ms. Dudley and identified further state exhibits. (T85-89)

During cross-examination, Letteri indicated Ms. Schoolcraft said a condom had been used during the encounter. (T89-92)

Nurse practitioner Mollie Rae Jerman described her sexual-assault examination of Ms. Schoolcraft, and identified certain photographs she had taken of the ostensible injuries. (T98-106) Jerman indicated a "chemical burn outside the vagina and another one very close to the urethra opening," and said that she couldn't "use a speculum because of the pain." (T106-107) She identified further exhibits and described Ms. Schoolcraft as "almost hysterical ... emotionally very upset," then described further aspects of her examination. (T107-113)

In cross-examination, Jerman indicated that Ms. Schoolcraft told her the sex was forceful, and that Mr. Griffin had used a condom but it had come off, followed by further examination indicating that some two days before the incident Ms. Schoolcraft had consensual intercourse using a condom. ((T113-19)

After further cross and redirect examination, Judge

Timmerman said trial would "break for the day." (T119-25)

Forty-four-year-old Judyette Dudley testified that she presently worked at the post office as a mail clerk, that she knew Mr. Griffin as a friend, and that at the time she lived at the apartment in question. (T130-34) She said that the morning in question she saw Mr. Griffin at a nearby Wal-Mart where she was working, said he'd told her he "had dropped a female off after a club last night," and said he offered her a ride home. (R134-36) But, she said, he drove by the apartment without stopping when there was a police car at the complex, and said he dropped her off a couple blocks away, telling her that if "they ask you anything, say you don't know nothing." (R136-37)

Ms. Dudley said she got home to find "two police officers and a victim standing in the guard shack telling me a crime scene had been committed in my apartment" (sic), and indicated police wouldn't let her in the apartment for several hours, as it was a crime scene. (R136-38) She said she spoke to Mr. Griffin later that day and asked "what did you do to my home to cause all that corruption [sic] and tore up my apartment," and said that police told her "somebody was raped in my apartment." (R136-39) She said she asked Mr. Griffin why "did he rape somebody in my apartment," and said he'd said he'd "messed up" and rented her apartment to a friend, "and they started fighting ... and they [Mr. Griffin and his friend]

tore up my apartment like that and that he would pay me for everything." (R139-40)

Ms. Dudley indicated she gave Mr. Griffin a key to her apartment some three or four days earlier as security for money she owed him, "for a drug transaction." (R140-41) After further questioning about the key, Ms. Dudley indicated Mr. Griffin later paid her "over a hundred dollars" for damage to her window, then said someone else found a ring, then explained to the jury why she hadn't told the police what she knew at the time. (R141-46)

She indicated that police contacted her several times after the day in question, then said some days later while cleaning her sofa - saying "bleach and everything was all over my sofa. It was destroyed" - she found a condom "stuck onto [a] pillow cushion," but "flushed it," and also found "some woman's mascara which was not mine was found down in the sofa." (T146-49)

The prosecutor asked about the condition of the apartment when she first got back in and Ms. Dudley said it was "[1]ike a hurricane had hit it," adding the bedroom door was locked from the inside. (R147-48) Ms. Dudley resumed describing a police detective coming back over to pick the sofa pillow in question, after she'd "trashed" the mascara wand and condom, then described telling police about Mr. Griffin. (T148-53)

In cross-examination, Ms. Dudley said again that she knew

б

Mr. Griffin only as "E," and agreed that she'd given him the key as part of a drug transaction involving marijuana and crack cocaine, but denied giving Mr. Griffin the key in the past "in return for crack cocaine." (T155-59) After questioning Ms. Dudley about her giving Mr. Griffin the key to her apartment as security, the defense attorney asked Ms. Dudley's "impression" of the apartment when she first got there the morning in question, prompting an objection from the state. (T159-63)

In bench conference, the prosecutor indicated the defense was "getting ready to ask her" whether the first thing she thought "when she saw a torn up apartment, this was either for drugs, sex or money," as she had said in deposition, and said the evidence was irrelevant. (T163) Judge Timmerman sustained the objection based on "speculation," he said. (T164) In further cross-examination Ms. Dudley agreed telling police at first that she'd lost the key she had actually given to Mr. Griffin. (R164-67)

In redirect Ms. Dudley indicated that after giving Mr. Griffin the key she'd told him "to bring no whore in my house with my key until I paid him first." (R168)

In recross examination, the defense asked about Ms. Dudley's being convicted of crime involving dishonesty, and she first said one "back in 1989," but changed that to 1997, "petit theft child abuse." (T170-71) The defense attorney

asked if she was placed on probation and "later violated," and Ms. Dudley answered, "I didn't violate my probation." (T171) The prosecutor objected "whether or not she violated her probation is irrelevant," and Judge Timmerman told the defense, "Don't go any further." (T171)

Detective John Yaratch testified he and Detective Lynn Sanbro - since retired - investigated the case, going to Ms. Dudley's apartment to get the "couch cushion," feeling "there might possibly be some fluids from the condom ... so I took that in evidence." (T173-76) He interviewed Ms. Dudley further, feeling she was "hesitant" in light of the "individuals in that area that deal with narcotics," adding "did provide piece by piece information she that was beneficial, but [I] actually had to work at it a little bit to get that from her." (T176-78) He indicated he put together a photo pack including Mr. Griffin, and that thereafter Ms. Schoolcraft had identified him. (T178-81)

In cross-examination, the detective indicated Ms. Dudley had first told him that she'd lost her key and that she had no idea who had gone into her apartment the early morning in question. (T181-83) In further cross-examination he said Ms. Dudley told him she might have dropped her key "and somebody in the neighborhood could have picked it up and let someone in to do drug deals in her apartment or have sex with individuals." (T186)

Twenty-two-year-old Leslie Schoolcraft testified the night in question she'd gone to "a patio club called Luna's" in Ybor City, and left about 4:00 a.m., and further that while driving home she threw a cigarette pack out the window but then remembered that she'd put her house key in the pack. She said she drove back to look for it, and while (T189-91) doing so a man came up and helped her, saying his name was Tony, and after they couldn't find the key he asked if she wanted to go for breakfast. (T191-95) She said the man had to drop by his apartment to get some money, and after indicating to the jury there were no "sexual overtures," testified that after they got into the apartment she noted, "it looked like it was a female's apartment." (T195-97) She asked to use the bathroom and said after that as she headed to the front door, the man grabbed her and threw on the love seat. (T197-98)

She described the assault, saying she struggled -"fighting and kicking" - during which a number of items were broken and/or overturned, adding that she told the man she had a nine-year-old daughter and faked an asthma attack, and that as she was ostensibly getting her inhaler she "took off running." (T198-202) She said the man caught her, and she was screaming she was getting raped, after which the man hit her the first time, then described running around the apartment, saying at one point he grabbed her neck "so hard I heard it pop." (T202-205) She indicated she stopped struggling, and

after describing the penetration said "after the sexual act" the man went in the kitchen, came back and "put his fingers inside my vagina and I asked him what he was doing because it was burning. He was telling me to shut up... I smelled the bleach. I knew he had bleach." (T205-208)

Thereafter Ms. Schoolcraft described the man telling her they had to clean up the apartment, in the process of which she went into the bedroom, locked the door and jumped out the second-story window, adding that after a later confrontation at her car an apparent neighbor came over, and that she was able to get to the security booth and that police eventually arrived. (T208-215)

After further direct, cross and redirect examination (during which the alternate juror left to take medication), trial recessed for lunch, after which analyst Curt Schuerman gave "DNA" testimony indicating Ms. Schoolcraft and Mr. Griffin had sex. (T215-53)

The state rested and Judge Timmerman denied the defense motion for judgment of acquittal, as to both the sexualbattery and burglary counts. (T255-64) Judge Timmerman questioned Mr. Griffin about his deciding to testify or not, followed by a conference on jury instructions. (T264-71)

The defense began its case-in-chief with Maurice Harris, who indicated that Ms. Dudley gave Mr. Griffin a key to her apartment, and that it "was like he was staying there with

her." (T271-74) The defense attorney asked about Ms. Dudley's reputation for using drugs, but Judge Timmerman sustained a state objection, saying "You don't need to go any further." (T274-75)

After further testimony from Mr. Harris, Mr. Griffin testified in his own behalf. (T275-79) He testified about meeting Ms. Schoolcraft and said he "interested" her to go back to "his" apartment by telling her he had drugs, to exchange for sex, and denied offering to take her to breakfast. (T279-85) He said on the drive to the apartment he gave Ms. Schoolcraft \$20 to get cigarettes at a convenience store. (T285-87) He said before they got to the complex "I was pulling out my penis and everything," and that rather than being offended or angry, Ms. Schoolcraft was smiling; "She was loving it." (T287-88)

After testifying about Ms. Dudley's letting him use her apartment, Mr. Griffin said once inside he "proceeded to undress" Ms. Schoolcraft, and that after he pulled her pants down Ms. Schoolcraft "said hold up. Do you have a condom and I said yeah. She checked. She felt the condom. It was still kind of dark in the house." (T288-93) He said the two had sex but later Ms. Schoolcraft said, "stop now. I guess I was too rough on her, I guess." (T293-94) He denied biting Ms. Schoolcraft's breast or choking her, then said that after having sex he didn't give her any drugs, which was - he

thought - why she "started screaming rape." (T294-95) He noted in due course that after Ms. Schoolcraft started screaming rape, "the first thing[,] I kind of panicked. A black man and a white lady. What's the first thing people are going to think[?]" (T295-96)

In state cross-examination designed to impeach his credibility, Mr. Griffin appeared to concede he used the bleach, "trying to defend myself for what she was saying. That's all I was concentrating on." (T297-301) He couldn't recall how many times he stuck his "fingers in bleach and put it inside Ms. Schoolcraft," but knew it was more than once. (T302) Mr. Griffin indicated that the damage to the apartment occurred during "that minute time" when, after "having [consensual] sex for ten minutes then all of a sudden it's like stop... I am kind of confused. Is she really serious or what? Then when she went to knock stuff over I am like oh she's serious." (T305)

In due course Judge Timmerman instructed the jury (T335-40), and in doing so said, "Your duty is to determine if the defendant has been proven guilty or not in accordance with the law. It is my job to determine a proper sentence if the defendant is found guilty." (T352) In due course the jury returned its verdicts, acquitting Mr. Griffin of Count Two and on Count One convicting him of lesser sexual battery using the threat of force. (T362-64)

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Although this Court has jurisdiction over the Petitioner's case based on the express conflict over the matter of a \$65.00 court cost, this case also presents an issue relating to the long-standing anomaly of the Florida Legislature's continuing to re-enact Florida Statute 918.10 some 33 times since this Court decided Johnson v. State, 308 So. 2d 38 (Fla. 1974), and earlier, Simmons v. State, 36 So. 2d 207 (Fla. 1948).

Briefly, in <u>Johnson</u> and <u>Simmons</u> this Court indicated trial judges are "privileged to ignore" §918.10, "in so far as it attempts to require the inclusion in the charge of the penalty for the offense for which the defendant was on trial." But notwithstanding this Court's announcement in <u>Johnson</u> and <u>Simmons</u>, the Legislature has re-enacted §918.10 in every legislative session since 1974. The question before this Court, raised in the Petitioner's case, is **why** the Legislature has done so.

The Petitioner respectfully suggests that the Florida Legislature did **not** intend to create some 33 consecutive "nullities," and that the lower courts of this state should not presume, as they have done thus far, that the Legislature did intend to create 33 such consecutive nullities. Instead, the most reasonable interpretation is that the Florida

Legislature intended to create a vested right **separate and apart** from that discussed in in <u>Johnson</u> and <u>Simmons</u>, and that that right was vested in the sovereign people of Florida, rather than in individual defendants, the issue this Court discussed in those two cases.

Simply put, the Petitioner respectfully suggests that by continuing to re-enact §918.10 in every legislative session since 1974, the Florida Legislature intended to protect the right of the sovereign people, to expect that public bodies representing them literally "know what they are doing." However, in PRR trials like this one, jurors effectively order a trial judge to impose a minimum-mandatory penalty, but without ever being instructed that they are doing so. Such jurors, ostensibly representing the sovereign people, literally do not "know what they are doing." The fiscal impact of this "not knowing" is literally tremendous, and by correcting that situation this Court could easily save the sovereign tax-payers of Florida a minimum of some one billion dollars, as explained below.

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