#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ERIC GABRIEL GRIFFIN PETITIONER,

V

CASE NO SC07-168

STATE OF FLORIDA, RESPONDENT.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS
ON REVIEW FROM THE SECOND
DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

BILL MCCOLLUM ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBERT J. KRAUSS Chief Assistant Attorney General Bureau Chief, Tampa Criminal Appeals Florida Bar No. 238538

TIMOTHY A. FREELAND
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar No. 0539181
Concourse Center Bldg. Four
3507 Frontage Road, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33607
Phone: (813) 287-7900
Fax: (813) 281-5500

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

#

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

## SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Issue One: The prohibition against Ex Post Facto laws does not apply to Petitioner's case because the trial court's imposition of costs intended to defray certain expenses did not amount to punishment.

Issue Two: Because this argument is outside the scope of the conflict issue, this Court should decline to address it. Further, the Second District's decision does not serve to restrict the scope of 3.800(B)(2) motions; instead, it denied Petitioner's claim because it lacked merit.

Issue Three: As with issue Two, the argument advanced herein is outside the scope of the conflict issue. Further, the present method of imposing PRR sentencing does not amount to "taxation without representation."

# ARGUMENT ISSUE ONE

COSTS IMPOSED BY THE TRIAL COURT DO NOT VIOLATE "EX POST FACTO" PROHIBITION

#### I. Standard of Review:

This Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review cases arising from the district courts of appeal where a decision from one district court of appeal is certified to be in direct conflict with a decision of another district court of appeal pursuant to Fla. R. App. Proc.

9.030(a)(2)(A)(vi). In the instant case, the Second District Court of Appeal certified that its decision in Griffin v. State, 947 So. 2d 610 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2007) conflicts with Ridgeway v. State, 892 So. 2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) on the issue of whether certain court costs imposed against Petitioner violate the prohibition against ex post facto laws where the statute authorizing those costs was enacted after the date of the crime in question.

### II. Argument:

Petitioner's argument here is that the Second

District's decision correctly struck the trial court's

imposition of costs because the statute which imposed those

costs was enacted after the date of the crime Petitioner

was found guilty of committing. The parties are in

agreement that Petitioner was found guilty of a crime that he committed in 2002; Fla. Stat. Secs. 939.185 and 938.085 were enacted after that date. The question to be resolved here is whether these costs authorized by the Florida Legislature may be retroactively imposed without violating the constitutional prohibition against ex post facto laws.

Initially, it is important to note that courts have uniformly held that the Ex Post Facto clause does not prohibit retrospective application of laws which are determined not to be punitive. For example, in <a href="Westerheide">Westerheide</a>
<a href="Westerheide">W. State</a>, 831 So. 2d 93 (Fla. 2002), this Court concluded that the civil commitment of inmates pursuant to the Jimmy Ryce Act could be applied retrospectively without violating the prohibition against Ex Post Facto laws because the Jimmy Ryce Act was not intended as punishment, but rather to treat inmates who were determined under the Act to require it. Thus a statute only violates the Ex Post Facto clause where it is determined to be punitive.

The controlling case here is <u>Goad v. Florida</u>

<u>Department of Corrections</u>, 845 So. 2d 880 (Fla. 2003). In <u>Goad</u>, the defendant was sentenced in 1991, and challenged the imposition of costs enacted by the legislature which took effect in 1994. This Court concluded that even though the legislation which authorized the costs clearly post-

dated the criminal offense, the State is nevertheless permitted to recover such costs, because, like in Westerheide, the effect of the legislation at issue was civil in nature, rather than punitive.

Specifically, this Court noted that the starting point in evaluating whether a law violates the ex post facto clause is the legislative intent. The statute in Goad was enacted for the purpose of recovering the costs of incarceration as well as restitution for uncompensated victims of crime. This Court concluded that because the purpose of the law was to compensate the State for expenses, the costs could be applied retroactively because they were not punitive in nature. In so ruling, this Court identified seven factors to be considered in determining whether a "costs" statute is punitive or civil: 1) whether the sanction involves an affirmative disability or restraint; 2) whether it has historically been regarded as a punishment; 3) whether it comes into play only upon a finding of scienter; 4) whether its operation will promote the traditional aims of punishment-retribution and deterrence; 5) whether the behavior to which it applies is already a crime; 6) whether an alternative purpose to which it may be rationally connected is assignable for it; and 7) whether it appears excessive in relation to the alternative

purpose assigned. <u>Goad</u>, id at 884. This Court then went on to conclude that the legislative intent of trying to recover the legitimate expenses of incarceration was civil rather than punitive, and therefore could not violate the prohibition against ex post facto laws, because such laws are intended only to prohibit the enactment of *punitive* legislation.

In the instant case, the plain language of the statutes at issue are similar to the one addressed in Goad. The costs identified in Fla. Stat. Sec. 939.185 are imposed to cover (in part) the expenses in four areas- the costs of operating the state courts system, the costs of operating legal aid programs, the costs incurred in staffing and funding the public law library, and the costs of operating teen court programs, juvenile assessment centers, and other juvenile alternative programs. Section 938.085 is intended to reimburse the State for costs associated with the Rape Crisis Fund. In other words, the purpose of imposing the costs identified by the legislature is solely to reimburse the county for programs operated by it, which are primarily for the benefit of criminal defendants. There is nothing in the language of either statute to suggest that either is intended as a punitive measure. As such, it would appear that these costs fall squarely within the ambit of such

legislation as that identified by this Court in <u>Goad</u>, and the Second District's conclusion that they were was improperly imposed should be rejected.

Similarly, in <u>State v. Yost</u>, 507 So. 2d 1099 (Fla. 1987) addressed the issue of which types of costs violate the ex post facto rule. In Yost, this court concluded that the ex post facto rule prohibits costs which carry a penalty for non-payment, but not otherwise. Thus, as in Petitioner's case, where the non-payment of the costs involved would result only in the possible imposition of a civil lien, there is no basis for concluding that the ex post facto rule prohibits the imposition of the costs at issue. See Yost at 1101.

The First District Court of Appeal in Ridgeway v.

State, 892 So. 2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005), with whom the

Second District has certified conflict, correctly stated
the rule which applies here. Where the effect of imposition
of a given law is punitive, in that it affects the length
of punishment, it may be considered to be an ex post facto
law and may not be applied retroactively. Conversely, the
imposition of certain costs intended to recover expenses
incurred by the State in providing services for those
accused of crime has no relation to the punishment of a
given defendant. As such, the costs authorized by Fla.

Stat. Sec. 939.185 and 938.085 were properly imposed in Petitioner's case, and this Court should reverse the Second District's ruling to the extent that it conflicts with the decision in <a href="Ridgeway">Ridgeway</a>.

#### ISSUE TWO

# THE SECOND DISTRICT'S INTERPRETATION OF RULE 3.800(B)(2) WAS CORRECT

Petitioner next asserts that the Second District improperly rejected his motion to correct illegal sentence filed pursuant to Fla.R.Crim.Proc. 3.800(B)(2). Respondent would first remind Petitioner that this claim is outside the scope of the conflict issue, and is therefore not subject to review by this Court. Battle v. State, 911 So. 2d 85 (Fla. 2005). In Williams v. State, 889 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 2004), this Court addressed a certified question from the Second District Court of Appeal regarding whether Anders procedures are applicable to Ryce commitment proceedings. This Court declined to address another issue raised by Petitioner since it was outside the scope of the certified question and was not the basis of its discretionary review. See also Friedrich v. State, 767 So. 2d 451 (Fla. 2000); Paulucci v. Gen. Dynamics Corp., 842 So. 2d 797, 799 (Fla., 2003); Allstate Ins. Co. v. Manasse, 707 So. 2d 1110, 1112 (Fla. 1998) (Court declined to address issue of attorney's fees which was outside the scope of certified question).

Turning to the merits of Petitioner's claim, however, the intent of this rule was to provide a vehicle authorizing the correction of sentencing errors detected during the pendency of appellate review which could not have been recognized at the time of sentencing. The rule allows a means whereby such errors may be corrected, and if need be, subsequently addressed during plenary review by the appellate court. Petitioner's complaint suggests that the Second District improperly restricted the scope of the rule at issue, but as we shall see, his claim is without merit.

Petitioner's motion at the trial level was directed at the method used by the State to establish his eligibility for PRR sentencing pursuant to Fla. Stat. 775.082.

Specifically, he asserted that the trial court improperly considered documents used by the State to establish the propriety of Petitioner's sentence as a prison releasee reoffender. The record reflects that the State used certified copies of documents procured from the State Department of Corrections to establish Petitioner's prior felony record, as well as the date of his release from prison. This information was necessary to the trial court's determination of his eligibility for sentencing pursuant to the PRR statute. Petitioner recognizes that defense counsel

made no contemporaneous objection to the State's use of these documents; however, he asserts that counsel's decision not to require the State to produce a live witness was the type of claim that is properly advanced in a Rule 3.800(B)(2) motion. The State Second DCA soundly rejected Petitioner's claim, primarily because he failed to establish that he was prejudiced. He is therefore not entitled to the relief that he presently seeks.

Petitioner never did, nor does he now, assert that he was prejudiced by trial counsel's actions. There is no argument that the certified documents presented by the State as proof of Petitioner's eligibility for PRR sentencing were erroneous. Rather, Petitioner's claim is that the import of the Second District's ruling is to require that claims of the type he now advances can only be presented in a post-conviction motion filed pursuant to Fla.R.Crim.Proc. 3.850, as a claim alleging ineffective assistance of counsel. The State does not necessarily disagree with Petitioner's argument, but instead asks whether there is a need for this Court to address the claim in the manner advanced by Petitioner.

There is no claim, and never has been, that

Petitioner's status as a PRR was incorrectly determined by

the trial court. Instead, Petitioner's claim is that he

should have more than one method of advancing an argument which is clearly covered by Rule 3.850. In support of his claim, Appellant directs our attention to Gray v. State, 910 So. 2d 867 (Fla. 1<sup>st</sup> DCA 2005), Desue v. State, 908 So. 2d 1116 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) and Peterson v. State, 911 So. 2d 184 (Fla. 1<sup>st</sup> DCA 2005). In all of these cases, however, the claim of error arose out of circumstances where a timely objection was made. Thus Petitioner's claim that these three cases "arguably" clarify the matter is disingenuous, at best. Instead, none of the cases advanced by Petitioner address a circumstance where the PRR sentence was imposed on the basis of documentation, as was the case here, in the absence of any timely objection. The State agrees that had a timely objection been made in Petitioner's case, the State would have been obligated to produce a live witness to authenticate the documents at issue. However, the record plainly shows that Appellant made no such objection (T. 368-369). Petitioner advances no claim regarding the accuracy of the information relied upon by the trial court in determining Appellant's release date, and the Second District's ruling in this regard was based primarily on a finding that no claim of error was advanced, at any time, directed towards establishing a claim that Petitioner's PRR sentence was improperly imposed.

Petitioner's assertion that the Second District's ruling improperly restricts the application of Rule 3.800(B)(2) is inapposite. Petitioner has not shown that he was prejudiced by the lower court's ruling, and even if he were, Rule 3.850 grants him an avenue for pursuing a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. The State would therefore urge this Court to find that no reversible error exists, and reject Petitioner's request for relief.

#### ISSUE THREE

# IMPOSITION OF PRR SENTENCE DOES NOT AMOUNT TO "TAXATION WITHOUT REPRESENTATION"

Petitioner's final claim is also outside of the scope of the certified question, and Respondent would therefore ask this Court to reject it for the same reasons advanced with regard to Issue Two.

On the merits, however, Petitioner's present claim is that because the jury is not permitted to know the effect of a guilty verdict in circumstances where a defendant qualifies for PRR sentencing, they are, in effect, imposing additional taxation upon themselves and the rest of society without the knowledge of the consequences of their actions. Thus, according to Petitioner, they are subjecting themselves to taxation under circumstances where there is no effective representation. The Second District addressed the identical issue in Calloway v. State, 914 So. 2d 12 (Fla. 2d DCA 2005) and concluded that it was, in a word, "absurd."

The circumstances described by Petitioner provide a curious question. On the one hand, it is well settled that criminal defendants are absolutely entitled to have each criminal trial determined on the merits of the facts relating to that crime alone, and, under normal

circumstances, the State is absolutely prohibited from informing the jury that the defendant has previously been convicted of a crime, with certain obvious exceptions.

Petitioner's present claim, however, presents the delicious absurdity of the opposite. If Petitioner had his way, he would, apparently, require that where a PRR sentence is contemplated, the jury be informed at some point prior to deliberations in the guilt phase of the trial, that the defendant is recently released from prison and that a guilty verdict on their part will result in a certain, lengthy sentence being imposed.

The State, frankly, is unable to understand what

Petitioner would have us do. It would appear that

Petitioner wishes for us to approve a jury instruction

which advises the jury that the defendant, because of the

fact that he has recently been released from prison, will

be required to serve a sentence of no less than thirty

years should they determine that the evidence establishes

his guilt beyond a reasonable doubt. If this is truly what

Petitioner seeks, the State urges him to propose such an

instruction and is certain that the majority of prosecutors

of this State would delight in being given the permission

and authority to advise the jury of the fact that the

defendant was recently released from prison and now stands

accused of committing a new offense. It is possible that some juries might, out of pity, elect to acquit some defendants, in hopes that by doing so they would encourage the accused to find the true path and stray no more.

The State recognizes that Petitioner believes the PRR statute to be unduly burdensome, no doubt due to the fact that it applies to him and has resulted in his being incarcerated for thirty more years with no hope for early release. However, it has been determined beyond cavil in the State of Florida that the jury, even under circumstances where a PRR sentence is contemplated, is duty bound to determine the facts of the case; once those facts have been established and the guilt (or lack thereof) of the defendant has been determined beyond a reasonable doubt, the trial judge, not the jury, is then obligated to make the necessary findings to impose the proper sentence. See McDowell v. State, 789 So. 2d 956 (Fla. 2001) and Gurley v. State, 906 So. 2d 1264 (Fla.  $4^{th}$  DCA 2005). In the present case, the trial court made a determination as to when the defendant was released from prison (T. 369), and sentenced Appellant accordingly pursuant to the applicable law. This Court should therefore affirm.

#### CONCLUSION

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